
 
PO BOX 12012, LANSING MI 48901-2012 

 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 

PLEASE NOTE: THIS NOTICE IS GIVEN AND PUBLISHED PURSUANT TO 
MCL 15.263a. The Executive Committee of the Michigan Municipal Services Authority (the 

Authority) is meeting electronically as a result of the COVID‐19 virus and to protect the 
health, safety and welfare of the citizens of Michigan from such virus, as allowed by MCL 

15.263a. 
 
The Authority will hold a regular meeting on the following date, at the following time, and at the 
following location: 

 
Date Time 
Thursday, August 12, 2021 1:30 PM 

 
Refer to the MMSA’s website to view the complete Agenda and Packet for the meeting. 

 

Specific instructions for public participation via a webinar 
will be posted on the MMSA’s 

website: http://michiganmsa.org/  
WEBINAR LINK: https://zoom.us/j/9015758091 

WEBINAR ID: 901 575 8091 
The meeting is open to the public and this notice is provided under the Open Meetings Act, 
1976 PA 267, MCL 15.261 to 15.275. 

The meeting location is barrier-free and accessible to individuals with special needs. 
Individuals needing special accommodations or assistance to attend or address the meeting 
should contact the Authority at (248) 925-9295 prior to the meeting to assure compliance with 
Subtitle A of Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336, and 42 
USC 12131 to 12134. 

A copy of the proposed meeting minutes will be available for public inspection at the principal 
office of the Authority within 8 business days. A copy of the approved minutes of the meeting, 
including any corrections, will be available for public inspection at the principal office of the 
Authority within 5 business days after approval. 

 

http://michiganmsa.org/


 
PO BOX 12012, LANSING MI 48901-2012 

              
 

A copy of the proposed minutes of the meeting will be available for public inspection at the principal office 
of the Authority within 8 business days.  A copy of the approved minutes of the meeting, including any 
corrections, will be available for public inspection at the principal office of the Authority within 5 business 
days after approval. 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Thursday, August 12, 2021 at 1:30 PM 

LIVE ZOOM WEBINAR  
[Link to Join Webinar] Webinar ID: 901 575 8091 

Capitol View Building 
201 Townsend St Suite 900 

Lansing, MI 48933 
 

AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

II. Roll Call 
 

III. Approval of Agenda 
 

IV. Approval of Minutes 
 

a. Minutes of the July 8, 2021 Executive Committee meeting 
 

V. Administrative Report 
 

a. Reminders 
b. FMS Project Update 
c. LCSA Project Update 
d. State of Michigan 
e. Potential Projects 
f. CEO Position and Other 
g. Insurance Renewal 
h. Monthly Financial Statements 

 
VI. Old Business 

 
VII. New Business 

 
VIII. Public Comment 

 
IX. Other Business 

 
X. Adjournment 

https://zoom.us/j/9015758091


PO BOX 12012, LANSING MI 48901-2012

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING

Thursday, July 8, 2021 at 1:30 p.m.

LIVE ZOOM MEETING
Capital View Building

Constitution Room – 9th Floor
201 Townsend Street

Lansing, MI 48933

MINUTES

⌧ Proposed Minutes ◻ Approved

MEETING TYPE: ⌧ Regular ◻ Special

I. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 1:34 p.m.

II. Roll Call

Executive Committee Member Attendance:

LOCATION PRESENT ABSENT
Angela Rogensues, Chair* Warren, Macomb County X
Eric DeLong, Treasurer* Grand Rapids, Kent County X
Kathleen Lomako, Secretary* Livonia, Wayne County X
Donna Cangemi* Sterling Heights, Macomb County X
Scott Erbisch Marquette, Marquette County X
Aaron Wagner* Grosse Pointe, Wayne County X

*Participated via teleconference.

Other attendees:

● Jaymes Vettraino, MMSA*
● Kristen Delaney, MMSA*



● Molly Clarin, City of Grand Rapids*

III. Approval of Agenda

Moved by: Cangemi
Supported by: DeLong

Yes: _X_ No: ___

IV. Approval of Minutes

a. Minutes of the June 10, 2021 Executive Committee meeting.

Moved by: Lomako
Supported by: Cangemi

Yes: _X_ No: ___

V. Administrative Report & New Business

The administrative report was delivered by CEO Vettraino. He stated that
Kent County has decided to move ahead with CGI Cloud Advantage.
Attorney Liedel will be working with them on an amendment to the
agreement.

DeLong and Clarin gave an update on the process of Grand Rapid’s
search for ERP solutions. DeLong noted that the current contract with
MMSA/CGI expires in March 2025, and that if a change was made, it
would take a couple of years to implement.

Vettraino updated the Committee on the MMSA’s work with the Local
Community Stabilization Authority, noting that both Personal Property Tax
Reimbursement payments and METRO Act fee sharing payments were
distributed in May with very few issues.

Vettraino stated that the work with Treasury and Mark Wollenweber will
continue.

Vettraino reviewed the changes to his contract that were requested at the
last meeting. He noted that he is now working month-to-month and the
agreement now requires a 30 day notice of termination by both parties
instead of the previous 14 days.

Vettraino reviewed the table of proposed MMSA projects included in the
packet. At a future meeting he stated that he would like to start the
conversation about what projects individual board members would like to
take on. Lomako stated that she would be interested in working with
Treasury and that she is excited about finding opportunities to expand
assistance to local municipalities.



VI. Old Business

None.

VII. New Business

None.

VIII. Public Comment

None.

IX. Other Business

None.

X. Adjournment

Motion to adjourn the meeting at 2:17 PM.

Moved by: DeLong
Supported by: Lomako

Yes: X No:

Certification of Minutes

Approved by the Executive Committee on August 12, 2021.

Authority Secretary Date



 
PO BOX 12012, LANSING MI 48901-2012 

              
 

 
 

 

August 4, 2021 
 
TO: MMSA Executive Committee Members 
 
RE: Executive Committee Meeting Report – August 12, 2021   
 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide the MMSA Executive Committee with 
this report.  Please note: the outline letters used in this report match the outline 
letters under item “V. Administrative Report and New Business” 
 

a. Reminders –  
 
Zoom Meeting – August 12, 2021 Executive Committee Meeting  
 

Consistent with the opinion received from Steve Liedel during the April, 2021 
Executive Committee meeting and confirmed with his continued monitoring of 
actions in Lansing and Ingham County, the MMSA may continue to meet via Zoom 
and be compliant with State law. The link for our August 12, 2021 meeting is: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/9015758091 

 
b. FMS Project Update 

 
Grand Rapids continues to have performance issues with CGI.  On July 27 MMSA 
hosted a call for Grand Rapids staff to talk with Steve Leidel about the city’s options 
regarding CGI’s non-performance issues.  Several performance issues were 
noted, some documented prior and some new.  Attorney Leidel requested the city 
provide an updated list of issues and he committed to review the FMS Agreement 
and to identify sections of the Agreement that CGI may be in violation of and to 
prepare a draft a letter, for Grand Rapids’ review, to CGI noting these sections of 
the Agreement.  A follow-up meeting has been scheduled with Grand Rapids for 
August 11. 
 
MMSA hosted a call on July 29 with Kent County and CGI to review the path 
forward to amend the MMSA / Kent / CGI FMS contracts to accommodate Kent’s 
upgrade to the “Advantage Cloud” product.  To this point, Kent County had been 
working directly with CGI to develop a scope of work for the installation of the 
product.  The County has indicated that they plan to begin installation of the 
product as soon as possible.  During the meeting Attorney Liedel had and 
opportunity to discuss the Amendments needed with Kent County Attorney Craig 



 

Page 2 of 4 

Paull and CGI’s legal team.  Though several changes are needed, Attorney’s 
Liedel assessment was that it can be accomplished efficiently.  Kent County and 
CGI both expressed the urgency to have the amended agreement so that they can 
proceed with the upgrade.  A follow-up meeting has been scheduled with Kent 
County for August 11.  The intent is for Attorney Leidel to present and review a 
draft amended contract to the County. 
 

c. LCSA Project Update 
 

Metro Act 
 
On July 15, Resultant hosted a meeting with MMSA (LCSA) to kick-off the FYE 
2022 Metro Act process.  As reported prior, the LCSA has executed a contract with 
Resultant to improve the Metro Act process.  Resultant has scheduled monthly 
project meetings to track the progress of this important project. 
 
PPT  
 
The next PPT payments to local units of government will be made in October 2021.  
The LCSA received a payment from the State of Michigan in the amount of $25.8 
million on July 30 for the October distribution.  The funds have been invested with 
MiClass.   
 
On July 27 the LCSA mailed invoices to five (5) local unites of government who 
received “overdistributions” from the State during the 2020/21 period.  The 
repayment may be made over three years.  Staff is working on a new system to 
track, and follow-up on invoice these types of overdistribution invoices. 
 
MiClass 
 
As noted prior, we continue to engage MiClass in conversations to see if it might 
be possible to expand LCSA’s use of their services.  Staff plans to meet with 
MiClass in August to discuss next steps, including beta testing, before bringing a 
recommendation to the LCSA Board regarding MiClass’ capacity to service the 
transactional needs of the LCSA. 

 
d. State of Michigan  

 
City of Flint – Mr. Wollenweber’s last day (of this stint) serving the city was July 19, 
2021.  Mr. Wollenweber indicated, based on his conversations with the city and 
State that the new Flint CFO has filled positions that were vacant and that his 
services are no longer needed at this time.  Please find attached in the agenda 
packet Mr. Wollenweber’s report to the State of Michigan of activities for the month 
of July. 

 
e. Potential Projects 



 

Page 3 of 4 

 
Thank you to those Board Members who have reached out to me to offer to help 
move forward a few of the project ideas that were identified during the June 
meeting.  Phone call meetings started in July and will continue into August to 
continue these discussions. 

 
f. CEO Position and Other 
 

Consistent with the agreement approved by the Executive Committee during its 
July meeting, I continue to execute the duties of MMSA CEO.   

 
g. Insurance Renewal 

 
On July 15, MMSA staff met with Craig Manser of the Ibex Agency (agent for 
Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA)) to review MMSA’s 
coverages and the 2021/22 policy renewals.  Copies of the Certificate of Insurance 
and Coverage Summary are included in the agenda packet.  The MMSA’s official 
renewal date for coverage is July 17, 2021.  Per MMRMA policy, coverage for 
members extends until changed or canceled by the member.  As reviewed with 
Mr. Manser: the MMSA carries a property coverage policy but has very limited 
property (values at about $1,500), the policy is maintained to have access to the 
important coverage of $1 million bond for MMSA employees, Executive Committee 
members, and Board members. The price for the MMSA’s policy is increased by 
1.9% ($48) for this period.  Mr. Manser expressed that he that this was an 
appropriate increase based on what he is seeing in the market (which are generally 
increases of more than 2%). 

 
Below is a summary of the coverage and price changes: 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: MMSA Executive Board authorizes the renewal of the 
MMSA’s property and liability insurance coverage with MMRMA at a price of 
$2,582. 
 

h. Monthly Financial Statements 
 

Please find attached the monthly financial statements for June 2021. 
 



 

Page 4 of 4 

Note: The FYE 2022 budget will be presented at the September Executive 
Committee meeting (MMSA is an October 1 fiscal year). 

 
If you have any questions or if I can provide any additional information, please let me 
know. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jaymes Vettraino  
CEO, Michigan Municipal Services Authority  
 



















7-6-2021



 

 

July 9, 2021 
 
 
 
To:  Jaymes Vettraino, CEO 

Michigan Municipal Services Authority (MMSA) Board of Directors 
 
 
Re: June 2021 Monthly Statements  
 
 
Enclosed are the following Monthly Statements for your review: 
 

1. Revenue & Expenditure Report – General Fund 
2. Revenue & Expenditure Report – Financial Management System Fund 
3. Revenue & Expenditure Report – All Funds 
4. Balance Sheet 
5. Check Register 
6. Bank Account Reconciliation  
7. Bank Statement 

 
 
 
Please contact Kari Shea (248-223-3287) or Kelly Schimmoeller (734-302-6456) with any 
questions. 
 
Thank you. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Disclaimer: These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement, and 
no assurance is provided on them. 



Year Ending Year Ending Year To Date
09/30/2020 09/30/2021 07/31/2021

END BALANCE ORIGINAL BUDGET AMENDED BUDGET YTD BALANCE % BDGT

Revenue
671000 - Contract Revenue 164,755 150,000 191,340 163,883 85.65 %

Total Revenue 164,755 150,000 191,340 163,883 85.65 %
Expenses

Salary and Fringes
701000 - Personal Services 197,103 181,000 123,230 124,129 100.73 %
710000 - FUTA Taxes 0 0 375 365 97.30 %
715000 - Social Security & Medicare 15,249 13,847 9,430 9,461 100.33 %
718000 - Insurance - Health 12,293 24,798 15,000 8,837 58.91 %

Total Salary and Fringes 224,645 219,645 148,035 142,792 96.46 %
Operating

752000 - Office Expense 4,010 2,000 3,000 2,576 85.87 %
801000 - Professional and Contractual Services 7,195 0 55,405 29,241 52.78 %
801500 - Office Rent 7,365 10,740 8,940 5,968 66.76 %
802000 - Legal 15,297 18,000 18,000 3,703 20.57 %
803000 - Accounting 12,181 16,000 16,500 14,055 85.18 %
803500 - Audit 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 100.00 %
804000 - Bank Service Charges 783 2,500 2,500 796 31.85 %
805000 - HR and Benefits Consulting 859 5,000 1,000 0 0.00 %
840000 - Insurance 4,951 2,810 7,000 4,983 71.18 %
861000 - Mileage Reimbursement 2,744 2,500 500 45 8.96 %
910000 - Professional Development 2,615 5,000 1,500 0 0.00 %
913000 - Conference Expenses 616 4,000 750 195 26.00 %
955000 - Miscellaneous 1,013 2,000 2,000 0 0.00 %

Total Operating 70,629 81,550 128,095 72,562 56.65 %
Total Expenses 295,274 301,195 276,130 215,354 77.99 %
Revenue in Excess of Expenses (130,519) (151,195) (84,790) (51,471) 60.70 %
Transfers

699273 - Interfund Transfer In - FMS 135,125 101,168 135,893 135,125 99.43 %
Total Transfers 135,125 101,168 135,893 135,125 99.43 %
Change in Equity 4,606 (50,027) 51,103 83,654 163.70 %

Michigan Municipal Services Authority
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT

As of July 31, 2021

General Fund

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement, and no assurance is provided on them.
Created on: 07/01/2021, 5:06 PM EDT



Year Ending Year Ending Year To Date
09/30/2020 09/30/2021 07/31/2021

END BALANCE ORIGINAL BUDGET AMENDED BUDGET YTD BALANCE % BDGT

Revenue
671000 - Contract Revenue 1,105,988 1,557,114 2,077,223 2,076,154 99.95 %

Total Revenue 1,105,988 1,557,114 2,077,223 2,076,154 99.95 %
Expenses

Operating
801000 - Professional and Contractual Services 970,863 1,455,946 1,941,330 1,941,029 99.98 %

Total Operating 970,863 1,455,946 1,941,330 1,941,029 99.98 %
Total Expenses 970,863 1,455,946 1,941,330 1,941,029 99.98 %
Revenue in Excess of Expenses 135,125 101,168 135,893 135,125 99.43 %
Transfers

995101 - Transfer Out - GF (135,125) (101,168) (135,893) (135,125) 99.43 %
Total Transfers (135,125) (101,168) (135,893) (135,125) 99.43 %
Change in Equity 0 0 0 0 0.00 %

Michigan Municipal Services Authority
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT

As of July 31, 2021

Financial Management System Fund

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement, and no assurance is provided on them.
Created on: 07/01/2021, 5:07 PM EDT



Year Ending Year Ending Year To Date
09/30/2020 09/30/2021 07/31/2021

END BALANCE ORIGINAL BUDGET AMENDED BUDGET YTD BALANCE % BDGT

Revenue
671000 - Contract Revenue 1,270,743 1,707,114 2,268,563 2,240,036 98.74 %

Total Revenue 1,270,743 1,707,114 2,268,563 2,240,036 98.74 %
Expenses

Salary and Fringes
701000 - Personal Services 197,102 181,000 123,230 124,129 100.73 %
710000 - FUTA Taxes 0 0 375 365 97.30 %
715000 - Social Security & Medicare 15,249 13,847 9,430 9,461 100.33 %
718000 - Insurance - Health 12,293 24,798 15,000 8,836 58.91 %

Total Salary and Fringes 224,644 219,645 148,035 142,791 96.46 %
Operating

752000 - Office Expense 4,010 2,000 3,000 2,576 85.87 %
801000 - Professional and Contractual Services 978,059 1,455,946 1,996,735 1,970,270 98.67 %
801500 - Office Rent 7,365 10,740 8,940 5,968 66.76 %
802000 - Legal 15,297 18,000 18,000 3,703 20.57 %
803000 - Accounting 12,181 16,000 16,500 14,054 85.18 %
803500 - Audit 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 100.00 %
804000 - Bank Service Charges 783 2,500 2,500 797 31.85 %
805000 - HR and Benefits Consulting 859 5,000 1,000 0 0.00 %
840000 - Insurance 4,951 2,810 7,000 4,983 71.18 %
861000 - Mileage Reimbursement 2,744 2,500 500 44 8.96 %
910000 - Professional Development 2,615 5,000 1,500 0 0.00 %
913000 - Conference Expenses 615 4,000 750 195 26.00 %
955000 - Miscellaneous 1,014 2,000 2,000 0 0.00 %

Total Operating 1,041,493 1,537,496 2,069,425 2,013,590 97.30 %
Total Expenses 1,266,137 1,757,141 2,217,460 2,156,381 97.25 %
Revenue in Excess of Expenses 4,606 (50,027) 51,103 83,655 163.70 %
Transfers

699273 - Interfund Transfer In - FMS 135,126 101,168 135,893 135,125 99.43 %
995101 - Transfer Out - GF (135,126) (101,168) (135,893) (135,125) 99.43 %

Total Transfers 0 0 0 0 0.00 %
Change in Equity 4,606 (50,027) 51,103 83,655 163.70 %

Michigan Municipal Services Authority
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT

As of July 31, 2021

Michigan Municipal Services Authority

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement, and no assurance is provided on them.
Created on: 07/01/2021, 5:08 PM EDT



PERIOD ENDED PERIOD ENDED
09/30/2020 07/31/2021 CHANGE % CHANGE

ASSETS
Current Assets

Bank Accounts 1,332,752 373,506 (959,246) (71.97) %
Other Current Assets

040000 - Accounts Receivable (1,023,322) 10,043 1,033,365 (100.98) %
123000 - Prepaid Expenses 1,356 695 (661) (48.73) %

Total Other Assets (1,021,966) 10,738 1,032,704 (101.05) %
Total Current Assets 310,786 384,244 73,458 23.63 %

TOTAL ASSETS 310,786 384,244 73,458 23.63 %
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
202000 - Accounts Payable 5,697 0 (5,697) (100.00) %

Total Accounts Payable 5,697 0 (5,697) (100.00) %
Other Current Liabilities

257000 - Accrued Salaries Wages 4,500 0 (4,500) (100.00) %
Total Other Current Liabilities 4,500 0 (4,500) (100.00) %

Total Current Liabilities 10,197 0 (10,197) (100.00) %
Total Liabilities 10,197 0 (10,197) (100.00) %
Equity

390000 - Fund Balance - Unassigned 295,983 300,589 4,607 1.55 %
Net Revenue 4,606 83,655 79,048 1,716.05 %

Total Equity 300,589 384,244 83,655 27.83 %
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 310,786 384,244 73,458 23.63 %

Michigan Municipal Services Authority
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

Michigan Municipal Services Authority

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement, and no assurance is provided on
them.
Created on: 07/01/2021, 5:09 PM EDT



Date Payee Document No Amount Cleared

1 Bank: Bill.com Clearing - Bill.com Clearing Account No: 1
06/04/2021 10029--Vettraino Consulting, LLC 1 6,156.00 In Transit
06/22/2021 10012--CGI - Technologies and Solutions 1 1,940,330.44 In Transit
06/30/2021 10003--Dykema Gossett, PLLC 1 757.05 In Transit
06/30/2021 10009--Kristen Delaney 1 30.00 In Transit
06/30/2021 10029--Vettraino Consulting, LLC 1 103.09 In Transit
06/30/2021 10002--Plante Moran 1 2,732.25 In Transit
1 Total for Bill.com Clearing 1 1,950,108.83 1
1 1 1 1 1
1 Bank: Fifth Third - 1244 - Firth Third Account No: 7169301244 1
06/02/2021 10015--Gusto 1 51.00 06/30/2021
06/10/2021 10015--Gusto 1 1,460.19 06/30/2021
06/24/2021 10015--Gusto 1 1,425.50 06/30/2021
06/29/2021 10005--BCBSM 1 469.90 06/30/2021
1 Total for Fifth Third - 1244 1 3,406.59 1
1 1 1 1 1

Michigan Municipal Services Authority
Check Register

Created on: 07/01/2021, 5:10 PM EDT Page 1



Michigan Municipal Services Authority
Reconciliation Report

As Of 06/30/2021
Account: 5/3 Checking

Statement Ending Balance 1 373,506.09
Deposits in Transit 1 0.00
Outstanding Checks and Charges 1 0.00
Adjusted Bank Balance 1 373,506.09
1 1 1
Book Balance 1 373,506.09
Adjustments* 1 0.00
Adjusted Book Balance 1 373,506.09
1 1 1

1
1

1 Total Checks and
Charges Cleared

1,961,374.20 Total Deposits Cleared 1,038,076.79

1

Deposits
Name Memo Date Doc No Cleared In Transit

City of Grand Rapids City of Grand Rapids 06/10/2020 1 1,038,076.79 1
Total Deposits 1,038,076.79 0.00

1

Checks and Charges
Name Memo Date Check No Cleared Outstanding

Gusto May 2021 Invoice 06/02/2021 1 51.00 1
General Ledger Entry 1 06/04/2021 1 6,156.00 1
General Ledger Entry 06.10.21 Payroll 06/10/2021 1 3,927.69 1
Gusto 6.10.2021 Payroll 06/10/2021 1 1,460.19 1
1 June 2021 Bank Fee 06/10/2021 1 87.12 1
General Ledger Entry 1 06/22/2021 1 1,940,330.44 1
General Ledger Entry 06.24.21 Payroll 06/24/2021 1 3,843.97 1
Gusto 6.24.2021 Payroll 06/24/2021 1 1,425.50 1
BCBSM Health Care Premium

July 2021
06/29/2021 1 469.90 1

General Ledger Entry 1 06/30/2021 1 3,622.39 1
Total Checks and Charges 1,961,374.20 0.00

Created on: 07/01/2021, 4:49 PM EDT Page 1




	Meeting Notice for August 12, 2021
	Agenda for August 12, 2021
	Meetings for the July 8, 2021 Executive Committee Meeting
	CEO Report
	Mark Wollenweber Report
	MMRMA Certificate of Coverage
	MMRMA Coverage Proposal
	June 2021 Financial Reports



